Public Document Pack

Resources Department
Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE
Members of the Licensing Regulatory Committee are summoned to a meeting which will
be held in Committee Room 3, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on 4 February 2019 at
4.00 pm.
Lesley Seary
Chief Executive
Enquiries to
Tel
E-mail
Despatched

:
:
:
:

Membership 2018/19
Councillor
Councillor
Chair)
Councillor
Councillor

Mary Green
020 7527 3005
democracy@islington.gov.uk
23 January 2019

Substitute Members

Nurullah Turan (Chair)
Councillor Mouna Hamitouche MBE
Michelline Safi Ngongo (Vice- Councillor Martin Klute
Councillor Marian Spall
Alice Clarke-Perry
Councillor Flora Williamson
Kat Fletcher

Quorum: is 3 Councillors
Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached.

A.

FORMAL MATTERS

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declaration of substitute members

3.

Declarations of interest

Page

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business:
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the
existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it
becomes apparent;
 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is
already in the register in the interests of openness and
transparency.
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating
in discussion of the item.
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to
speak on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at
the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may
participate in the discussion and vote on the item.
*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or
vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of
your expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your
election; including from a trade union.
(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works,
between you or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a
beneficial interest) and the council.
(d)
Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s
area.
(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a
month or longer.
(f) Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body
in which you or your partner have a beneficial interest.
(g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has
a place of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal
value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its
issued share capital.
This applies to all members present at the meeting.
4.

Procedure for the meeting - this is attached

1-2

5.

Minutes of the previous meeting

B.

LICENSING MATTERS

1.

Renewal of Special Treatment Licence application - London Grace, 35
Camden Passage, N1 8EA

C.

Urgent non-exempt/non-confidential matters

3-6

7 - 22

Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered
urgently by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will
be agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.
D.

Exclusion of public and press
To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the
agenda, any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or
confidential information within the terms of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public
during discussion thereof.

E.

Exempt/confidential matters (if any)

2.

Renewal of Special Treatment Licence application - London Grace, 35
Camden Passage, N1 8EA - exempt appendix 4

F.

Urgent exempt/confidential matters

23 204

Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently
by reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be
agreed by the Chair and recorded in the minutes.

The next meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee is scheduled for 11 June 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE
PROCEDURE FOR THE HEARING OF OBJECTIONS TO STREET TRADING, TRACK BETTING,
AND SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCES
1. The Chair of the Licensing Regulatory Committee shall:
(a) invite all members of the Committee, the applicant, the objector, their representatives and any
witnesses and officers to introduce themselves
(b) ascertain whether the applicant and objector(s) are present and, if unaccompanied, whether
they were aware that they could be represented
(c) outline the procedure to be followed at the meeting
2. The Service Director (Public Protection) or his/her representative, will introduce the
application.
3. (a) Council officer reports on noise and other matters
(b) Questions to officers from objectors and applicants
4. The applicant or his/her representative will present in detail the grounds of the application.
5. Objectors and members of the Committee may ask questions only of the applicant at this
stage. Statements will not be allowed.
6. The objector(s) or his/her representative(s) will present in detail the grounds of the objection
and may call witnesses in support of the objection.
7. The objector(s) and any witnesses may be called be questioned by members of the
Committee, the applicant or his/her representative(s) and appropriate officers of the Council.
Statements will not be allowed. Witnesses called by the objector(s) may be re-examined by the
objector(s) or his/her representative on matters arising from those questions.
8. A Ward councillor may be present at the meeting and may make a statement to the Committee
regarding the application, if the required notice has been given.
9. The objector(s) or his/her representative may then make a closing speech.
10. The applicant or his/her representative may then make a closing speech.
11. Members of the Committee may withdraw from the room to consider their decision. The
Council’s legal adviser and the clerk will accompany Members, in case legal or procedural
advice is required.
12. The Licensing Officers, objectors(s), applicant, any representative(s) and witnesses will
remain available for recall.
13. If it is necessary to recall any party to provide further information or clarification, all parties
at the meeting will be invited to return.
14. At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Committee will consider the evidence presented
and the Chair will announce the decision, together with any conditions deemed fit to apply to the
application. Reasons will be given for the decision and any conditions imposed on the licence.
This will be confirmed in writing to the applicant and objector(s), or to their legal representative,
accompanied by a description of any conditions which are to be attached to the granting of the
licence, or the reasons for the refusal of the application. The applicant will be told of any
statutory rights of appeal which are available to him/her.

NB - These procedures may be waived, altered or modified by the Chair of the Licensing
Regulatory Committee

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
London Borough of Islington
Licensing Regulatory Committee - 4 July 2018
Non-confidential minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held at the Town
Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD, on 4 July 2018 at 5.30 pm.
Present:

Councillors:

Nurullah Turan (Chair), Alice Clarke-Perry, Kat Fletcher
and Mouna Hamitouche

Councillor Nurullah Turan in the Chair

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item 1)
Received from Councillor Michelline Safi-Ngongo.

2

DECLARATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item 2)
Councillor Hamitouche substituted for Councillor Ngongo.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item 3)
None.

4

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Item 5)
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 February 2018 be confirmed as an accurate
record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them.

5

MEMBERSHIP, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE
LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE IN 2018/19 (Item 6)
The Democratic Services Officer alerted members to the fact that an amendment was to be
made to the Committee’s terms of reference at Council on the following evening to permit
the Committee to determine the amount of fees and charges to be made for any approval,
consent, licence, permit or registration within the terms of reference of the Committee.
Councillor Fletcher, seconded by Councillor Clarke-Perry, proposed Councillor Michelline
Safi-Ngongo as Vice-Chair of the Committee.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the membership of the Committee, as appointed at the Annual Council meeting on
24 May 2018, terms of reference and dates of meetings of the Licensing Regulatory
Committee for the municipal year 2018/19, as detailed in Appendix A of the report of the
Corporate Director of Resources, be approved.
(b) That Councillor Michelline Safi-Ngongo be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Committee for
the municipal year 2018/19, or until a successor is appointed.

6

LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT 1990: SECTION 28(1) - BREACH OF STREET
TRADING CONDITIONS - WHITECROSS STREET (Item 1)
The Street Trading Manager reported that Mr Borea had contacted her by email that day to
confirm that he would not be attending the Committee. In his email, Mr Borea had requested
that his licence be transferred to his assistant. Copies of the email exchange of 13 June
1

Page 3

Licensing Regulatory Committee - 4 July 2018
2018 and 4 July 2018, between Mr Borea and the Street Trading Manager, were supplied to
members of the Committee.
During a telephone conversation with Mr Borea, the Street Trading Manager had reiterated
the purpose of today’s meeting and her recommendation to the Committee that his licence
should be revoked on the grounds of his non-attendance on the stall and issues relating to
the safety of the food items on his stall.
She informed the Committee that the Street Trading Team worked very closely with
Environmental Health and wanted all street traders dealing with food items to achieve at
least a Food Hygiene Rating of 3, denoting “Generally Satisfactory”. Where this was not
achieved, the Street Trading Team and Environmental Health officers worked with the
traders to help them to improve and hopefully achieve the required Food Hygiene Rating.
However, the Council did not have the resources to provide continuing support on an
ongoing basis of this nature to all its street traders.
She stated that there had been issues with Mr Borea and his stall since 2014, mainly
because Mr Borea had not been present in person to trade. His licence had been
suspended twice in the past and he had not been charged any fees since March 2018. Mr
Borea had displayed a history of non-compliance with the conditions of his licence. His
licence had been suspended in March 2017 following an inspection of his stall resulting in a
score of 1, denoting “Major Improvement Necessary” and to the Service Manager’s concern
that Mr Borea attended his stall only infrequently, a contributory factor to the poor hygiene
standard rating she suggested.
In response to a question from a member of the Committee, the Street Trading Manager
stated that a rating of 1 would be of great concern to the Council, meaning no hot water
available and poor food handling. It was noted that Mr Borea had been storing some of his
food items in the basement of a local pub, at unsafe temperatures, since the air
temperatures were too high. This would constitute a risk to the public.
The Street Trading Manager reported that two unknown food handlers were found on Mr
Borea’s stall on 17 March 2018. They said that they were there with the permission of the
licensee. They were serving hot pasta, which they had cooked on camping stoves, which
was another breach of street trading conditions since Mr Borea was not licensed to sell hot
food.
The Committee noted that, as at 10 April 2017, Mr Borea’s licence had been re-instated,
following a period of suspension, as he had complied with requirements, including training
for his assistants. However, shortly afterwards, Mr Borea was not seen on his stall again
and was not present to oversee it. The fact that he was not present at today’s meeting and
instead requesting the transfer of the licence to an assistant, indicated to the Street Trading
Manager that Mr Borea viewed his licence and stall as something he could sub-let. She
pointed out that there were many hard working street traders who would realise the
importance of their attendance at a meeting such as this, where their livelihood was under
consideration, and she was concerned that Mr Borea had not communicated with her before
today.
Members noted that Mr Borea had been breaching the conditions of his street trading
licence for some time and regarded it as a dereliction of his duties as a licence holder.
The Street Trading Manager stated that there was a waiting list for traders in Whitecross
Street Market. There were so many names on the waiting list to trade in Whitecross Street,
that the Street Trading Manager had to review and remove names from the list every six
months.
2

Page 4

Licensing Regulatory Committee - 4 July 2018
Mr Borea was not only posing a health and safety risk to customers in the Market, but also
to the reputation of the Market. There were street traders operating in Islington who had
achieved top food ratings of four or five.
Members of the Committee wished to know if it was possible to flag this revocation with
other authorities, in case Mr Borea was operating at other sites across London. The Street
Trading Manager said that she attended benchmark meetings with other London authorities,
where information was exchanged, and would share the information about this revocation at
that meeting.
Members were satisfied of the need for the revocation of Mr Borea’s street trading licence.
RESOLVED:
That the application by the Council’s Street Trading Team for the revocation of the street
trading licence of Mr Matteo Borea, licensed trader on pitch 64 in Whitecross Street Market,
be approved.
Reasons for decision
The Committee considered all of the written and oral evidence.
The Committee noted that there was sufficient evidence of persistent breaches of standard
conditions of the licence, as set out in the report of the Service Director (Public Protection).
The Committee noted that Mr Borea’s licence had been suspended on 15 March 2017, as a
result of a breach of street trading conditions. At a subsequent meeting with officers from
the Council’s Street Trading Panel, he had been warned that his trading practices would
continue to be monitored and he was advised of the likely consequences if there were any
further concerns about health and safety. Despite this, Mr Borea’s licence had to be
suspended again on 9 March 2018, due to further breaches of conditions.
The Committee was satisfied that the following grounds under s28 of the London Local
Authorities Act 1990 had been met:
a) Under clause 28(1)(c), Mr Borea had failed to fully avail himself of his licence in that he
had traded in person on only four occasions since 1 September 2017.
b) Under clause 28(1)(d), Mr Borea was unsuitable to hold the licence as the licence had
been suspended on two occasions and on 7 March 2018 he had allowed two unauthorised
assistants to operate the pitch who were selling food not within the class of commodity
allowed on the licence.
c) Under clause 28(1)(h), Mr Borea had persistently failed to comply with conditions of his
licence as specifically:
i) he had failed to undertake the business activity of the stall in compliance with other
legislation enforced by the Council or other Agencies eg Environmental Health, Health and
Safety, Food Safety, Trading Standards, Fire Prevention, Waste Management and
Highways Regulations. Following an inspection of Mr Borea’s stall on 14 March 2017 by
the Council’s Environmental Health Officer, his business had been awarded a food and
hygiene rating score rating of 1, indicating that major improvement was needed.
ii) he had failed to ensure that his nominated assistant trading in his absence displayed a
valid stall card.
iii) he had allowed the supply of hot food from the pitch in breach of his licence and on 7
March 2018 an inspection by the Council’s environmental Health Officer found that Mr
Borea’s assistants were using camping gas stoves to cook pasta.

3

Page 5

Licensing Regulatory Committee - 4 July 2018
The Committee therefore concurred with the view of the Street Trading Manager that Mr
Matteo Borea’s licence be revoked.
The meeting ended at 6.00 pm

CHAIR

4

Page 6

Agenda Item 1
Public Protection /Licensing
222 Upper Street, London N1 1XR
Report of: Jan Hart, Service Director – Public Protection
Licensing Regulatory Committee

Date:4 February 2019

Delete as appropriate

Ward : St Peter’s
Non-exempt

APPENDIX 4 OF THIS REPORT IS EXEMPT AND NOT FOR PUBLICATION

SUBJECT:

LONDON LOCAL AUTHORITIES ACT, 1991 PART II - RENEWAL OF THE
SPECIAL TREATMENT LICENCE HELD IN RESPECT OF LONDON GRACE, 35
CAMDEN PASSAGE, LONDON, N1 8EA

1.

Synopsis

1.1

This is an application for a renewal of the special treatment licence under the London Local
Authorities Act 1991, Part II. A copy of the application form can be found at Appendix 1.

1.2

The application is to renew the provision of manicure and pedicure treatments at the premises.

1.3

The application is subject a representation from local residents in response to the application.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

The Committee needs to consider all the evidence before determining this application;

2.2

If the Committee decides to refuse the application the London Local Authorities Act 1991
section 8 permits it to do so under one or more of the following grounds:
(a) the premises are not structurally suitable for the purpose;
(b)

there is a likelihood of nuisance being caused by reason of the conduct, management or
situation of the premises or the character of the relevant locality or the use to which any
premises in the vicinity are put;

Page 7

2.3

(c)

the persons concerned or intended to be concerned in the conduct or management of
the premises used for special treatment could be reasonably regarded as not being fit
and proper persons to hold such a license;

(d)

the persons giving the special treatment are not suitably qualified;

(e)

the premises have been or are being improperly conducted;

(f)

the premises are not provided with satisfactory means of lighting, sanitation and
ventilation;

(g)

the means of heating the premises are not safe;

(h)

proper precautions against fire on the premises are not being taken;

(i)

they are not satisfied as to the safety of equipment used in the special treatment or as to
the manner in which the treatment is to be given;

(j)

they are not satisfied as to the safety of the special treatment to be given;

(k)

satisfactory means of escape in case of fire and suitable means for fighting fire are not
provided on the premises;

(l)

the applicant has, within the period of five years immediately preceding the application
to the borough council, been convicted of an offence under this Part of this Act; or

(m)

the applicant has failed to comply with the requirements of subsection (4) or (6) of
section 7.

If the Committee decides to renew the application it should be subject to:
i)

the standard conditions for special treatment premises (see appendix 5);

ii)

the conditions of the current premises licence; and

iii)

any conditions deemed appropriate by the Committee including that the provision of
special treatments at the premises is suspended until the statutory nuisance to residents
is resolved and the licensing team are notified of this in writing by the Council’s
Environmental Health Team.

3.

Background

3.1

On 29 June 2017 the licensing team received an application for a special treatment and
premises licence application for London Grace, 35 Camden Passage, London, N1 8EA.

3.2

The licensing team received no objections to the special treatment licence application so it was
deemed granted on the 27 July 2017.

3.3

The applicant operated similar businesses in other locations in and around London. Licensing
officers visited the London Grace site located in Westminster and were advised that the
premises in Camden Passage would be fitted out and operated in a similar manner. As a result
licensing had no concerns in regards to the new premises.

3.4

The premises licence application seeking the sale of alcohol under the Licensing Act 2003
received twelve letters of representation from the local residents. It was subsequently granted
with conditions by the Council’s Licensing Sub Committee on the 31st August 2017. The
premises licence was issued subject to the following licence condition:

Page 8



the licence shall not have any effect unless the premises has been granted a Massage
and Special Treatments licence issued by the London Borough of Islington. The Special
Treatment licence shall be maintained.

3.5

On 23/10/17 initial complaints of odour and noise nuisance were received from neighbouring
residents via Licensing and the Out of Hours Response and Patrol Team. The history of these
complaints are contained in the Environmental Heath representation to this renewal
application.

3.6

Although approved, the Special Treatment licence had not been issued upon receipt of the
initial complaint. On issuing, it was subject to an additional condition stating that:


3.7

Odour from the business shall not cause a nuisance to the occupants of any properties
in the vicinity.

The special treatment licence was issued until the 30th September 2018. The licensee sought
a renewal within the required time scale.
During the consultation period an objection was received from local residents. The main
grounds for objecting to the renewal of the licence are:
i.

that the building is not structurally suitable for the purpose of providing nail treatments;

ii.

proper precautions against fire on the premises are not being taken; and

iii.

concerns about the applicants ability to comply with the special licence and its
conditions.

3.8

The matter was originally listed to be heard at Regulatory Committee in November 2018. In
order to give all parties an opportunity to resolve the matter without the need for a hearing it
was adjourned.

3.9

The applicant has undertaken works at the premises and has also ceased the provision of
licensable activities on the ground floor as a result of enforcement action from both the
Environmental Health and the Council’s Planning Team.

3.10

The issues set out in the representations have not been fully resolved at the time of writing
this report.

4.
4.1

Implications
Financial Implications:
The Head of Finance reports that the applicant has paid the application fee of £341.00. Should
the application be refused, the fee shall be refunded less the Council’s costs in dealing with the
application.

4.2

Legal Implications:
The legal implications are set out in paragraph 2.1, 2.2. 2.3. In addition should the provision
of special treatment licence be revoked, it would also result in the licence holders being unable
to continue to sell alcohol until another Special Treatment licence is issued for the premises.

4.3

Environmental Implications
Committee reports need to consider the impacts that that proposals will have on the
environment. An impact is defined as any change to the environment, whether positive or

Page 9

negative, wholly or partially resulting from Council activities. Almost all human activity has
some impact on the environment, and it is very unlikely that any activity will not have any
implications.
4.4

Resident Impact Assessment:
The council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations, between those who share a relevant protected characteristic and those
who do not share it (section 149 Equality Act 2010). The council has a duty to have due regard
to the need to remove or minimise disadvantages, take steps to meet needs, in particular steps
to take account of disabled persons' disabilities, and encourage people to participate in public
life. The council must have due regard to the need to tackle prejudice and promote
understanding.
A Resident Impact Assessment was completed on 21 January 2019 and there is no impact as a
result of this application.

4.5

Planning implications
The advice from the planning team is that the ground floor, due to the Council’s policy position
of protecting A1 retail use, must be returned to a retail use, and that a planning application
would need to be submitted for the change of use to a mixed use (A1 retail to ground floor and
Sui Generis to the basement) in order to regularise the unauthorised change of use.

5.

Conclusion and reasons for recommendations

5.1

The licensing team have concerns, based on the all the evidence submitted, that the premises
is not structurally suitable for the provision of the licensable treatments being sought.

5.2

The licensing team are therefore recommending that, if the licence is granted, a specific
condition is added to the licence to ensure that the premises cannot operate until the nuisance
is resolved.

Appendices
Appendix 1:
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4:
Appendix 5:

Application form
Current premises licence and associated layout plan
Copy of current Licensing Act 2003 premises licence
Representations; exempt
Local area map.

Signed by:
Jan Hart, Service Director – Public Protection
Report Author: Licensing Service
Tel:
0207 527 3031
Email:
licensing@islington.gov.uk

Page 10

Date 22/01/19

Appendix 1

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Appendix 2

Page 14

Appendix 3

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Appendix 5

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 2

This page is intentionally left blank

